
**Agenda subject to change 

Franklin City Council Agenda 
January 13, 2025  

Council Chambers 
207 West Second Avenue 
Franklin, Virginia 23851 

 

7:00 P.M.  
Regular Meeting 

CALL TO ORDER. . . . . .  .  MAYOR PAUL KAPLAN 
PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES. . . .   MAYOR PAUL KAPLAN 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
CITIZEN’S TIME  (3 MINUTES) 

 

1. CONSENT AGENDA 
(The Consent Agenda provides a method for expediting items that do not require discussion. Items listed on the Consent Agenda 
are considered routine and non-controversial and will be approved unanimously by a single roll-call vote of the City Council. A Council 
member may request to remove an item from the Consent Agenda, and if approved, it will be placed on the regular agenda for 
discussion and consideration.) 

A. Approval of Agenda for January 13, 2025 
B. Approval of December 9, 2024 Regular Council Meeting Minutes 

 

2. ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 
A. Mayor’s Organizational Remarks 
B. Selection of Vice-Mayor 
C. Seat Selections 
D. Boards’ and Commissions’ Council Assignments 
E. Approval of 2025 Meeting Calendar 
 

3. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
Agenda Item #2025-1: 
 Adoption of the Resolution Honoring the Memory of June Fleming  
Agenda Item #2025-2: 

Adoption of the Resolution Honoring Robert “Bobby” Cutchins, II for his Service and 
Contributions to the Community 

Agenda Item #2025-3: 
Adoption of the Resolution Honoring Ray Smith for his Service and Contributions to the 
Community 

Agenda Item #2025-4: 
Adoption of a Resolution Amending the FY 2024-2025 City Operating Budget to Accept and 
Appropriate the Amount of $77,220 Received as a Donation from the Camp Family Foundations 
to the Foundation Grant Funds for use by the Franklin Police Department, Franklin Fire 
Department, and the Hunterdale Volunteer Fire Department 

Agenda Item #2025-5: 
Adoption of a Resolution Amending the FY 2024-2025 City Operating Budget to Accept and 
Appropriate the Amount of $10,000 Received as a Donation from the Franklin Southampton 



**Agenda subject to change 

Charities to the Foundation Grant Funds for Use by the Franklin Fire Department and the 
Hunterdale Volunteer Fire Department 
 

4. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Boards & Commissions 

• Agenda Item #2025-6:  
-Appointment to Virginia Municipal Electric Association (VMEA)-Wendell Adkison 
-Appointment to Eastern Virginia Regional Industrial Facility Authority (EVRIFA)-Rosylen 
Oglesby 

B. Items Submitted by Council Members (Council Comments) 
C. Report on Pending Items 

• Agenda Item #2025-7:  Renaming and Honorary Street Policies 
 

5. CLOSED SESSION 
A. Convene closed meeting pursuant to Virginia Code Section 2.2-3711 (A)(1) for the purpose of 

discussing, considering, or interviewing prospective candidates for employment. 
 

6. RECONVENE REGULAR SESSION 
 

7. CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED MEETING 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 



 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 

Regular City Council Meeting Minutes December 9, 2024  

Call to order 

The Franklin City Council held its regular City Council meeting on December 9, 2024 at 7:00 p.m. in 
the City Council Chambers. 

Council Members in Attendance: Robert “Bobby” Cutchins, Mayor; Wynndolyn Copeland, Vice-Mayor; 
Councilman Gregory McLemore; Councilman Mark Kitchen; Councilman Linwood Johnson; 
Councilwoman Jessica Banks. 

Council Members not in Attendance: Councilman Ray Smith 

Staff in Attendance: Rosylen Oglesby, City Manager, Jesse Bausch, City Attorney 

Citizen’s Time 

Dr. Erin Pack, Board of Director Member with Western Tidewater Free Clinic, gave an 
update on services, thanked the council for their investment, and invited them to tour the clinic. 

Amendments to Agenda 

A motion was made by Councilman Kitchen and seconded by Councilman Johnson to approve the 
agenda. 

The motion carried the vote 6-0. 

The vote as follows: 

Ayes:  Johnson, Kitchen, Banks, Copeland, Cutchins, McLemore 

Absent:  Smith 

Consent Agenda 

A. Approval of November 25, 2024 work session minutes.  

Mayor Cutchins asked if there were any corrections or additions to the November 25, 2024 work 
session minutes.  

None were heard. 

A motion was made by Councilwoman Banks and seconded by Vice-Mayor Copeland to approve the 
work session minutes of November 25, 2024. 

The motion carried the vote 6-0 

The vote was as follows:  

Ayes:  Johnson, Kitchen, Banks, Copeland, Cutchins, McLemore 



2 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 

Absent:  Smith 

B. Approval of November 25, 2024 Regular Council Meeting Minutes. 

Mayor Cutchins asked if there were any corrections or additions to the November 25, 2024 regular 
council meeting minutes. 

None were heard. 

A motion was made by Councilman Kitchen and seconded by Vice-Mayor Copeland to approve the 
regular council meeting minutes of November 25, 2024. 

The motion carried the vote 6-0 

The vote was as follows: 

Ayes:  Johnson, Kitchen, Banks, Copeland, Cutchins, McLemore 

Absent:  Smith 

Public Hearing 

Issuance, Sale, and Award of a General Obligation Note, Series 2024 

Mayor Cutchins opened the public hearing and deferred to City Manager Oglesby. 

City Manager Oglesby explained that this was the second phase for what Council had started for the 
Courthouse, Armory, and Radio Projects seeking funding not to exceed $8.1 million. 

Mayor Cutchins called for public comments three times. 

None were heard 

Mayor Cutchins closed the public hearing. 

 



3 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 

 



4 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 



5 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 



6 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 



7 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 



8 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 



9 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 



10 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 



11 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 



12 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 



13 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 



14 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 



15 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 



16 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 



17 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 



18 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 



19 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 



20 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 



21 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 



22 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 



23 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 

 



24 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 

Old/New Business  

A. Council Comments 

Councilman Johnson wished everyone a Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year stating he is looking 
forward to next year. He also thanked the City Manager and her staff. 

Councilman Kitchen thanked the Mayor for his service and made comments in reference to the 
Christmas Parade, swearing in of newly-elected officials, and plans to address the complaint from Ms. 
Lawrence at the last meeting.  

Vice-Mayor Copeland made comments in reference to the complaint from Ms. Lawrence and thanked 
the Mayor and wished him well. 

Councilwoman Banks extended a happy holidays to everyone and thanked the Mayor. 

Councilman McLemore made comments in reference to the Christmas Parade, Ms. Lawrence’s 
complaint, swearing in of elected officials, plaque presented to the Mayor and Councilman Smith at the 
next meeting, filling the city attorney position, and thanked the Mayor for his service. 

Mr. Jesse Bausch, representative with Sands Anderson, PC, explained that for the new term, each 
member needs to be sworn in before January 1st at the Clerk of Circuit Court and then a ceremonial 
swearing in can take place how they want. 

There was discussion in reference to how to handle addressing the complaint brought forth by Ms. 
Lawrence against the school system. 

Mayor Bobby Cutchins thanked everyone, stated that it has been an honor to work with everyone, and 
made comments in reference to the Christmas Parade. 

Clarification was provided by the Mayor to the City Manager to contact the Superintendent to schedule 
a meeting with her, Councilman McLemore, Vice-Mayor Copeland, the Superintendent and School 
Board Chair to discuss the matter referencing Ms. Lawrence. 

City Manager’s Report 

A. Ordinance to Provide Personal Property Tax Exemption for Qualified Volunteer Firefighters and 
Emergency Medical Services Personnel 

City Manager presented the following Ordinance for adoption and stated it would be an estimated 
$8,000 lost to general fund to the personal property taxes. 

 

 

 



25 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 



26 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 

 



27 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 

A motion was made by Councilman McLemore and seconded by Vice-Mayor Copeland to adopt the 
Ordinance to Provide Personal Property Tax Exemption for Qualified Volunteer Firefighters and 
Emergency Medical Services Personnel.  

The motion carried the vote 6-0 

The vote was as follows:  

Ayes:  Johnson, Kitchen, Banks, Copeland, Cutchins, McLemore 

Absent:  Smith 

B. Resolution Providing for the Issuance, Sale, and Award of a General Obligation Note, Series 
2024 of the City of Franklin, Virginia 

City Manager Oglesby presented the following resolution for approval 



28 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 



29 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 



30 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 



31 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 



32 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 

 



33 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 

A motion was made by Councilman Kitchen and seconded by Councilman Johnson to approve the 
Resolution Providing for the Issuance, Sale, and Award of a General Obligation Note, Series 2024 of the 
City of Franklin, Virginia and Providing for the Form, Details and Payment Thereof. Discussion: 
Councilman McLemore asked Davenport how much the city was paying them for this bond 
acquisition/loan application. Mr. Kyle Laux, Senior Vice President of Public Finance with Davenport & 
Company, stated $50,000. 

The motion carried the vote 5-1 

The vote was as follows:  

Ayes:  Johnson, Kitchen, Banks, Copeland, Cutchins 

Nays:  McLemore 

Absent:  Smith 

Councilman Kitchen left the room at 7:35 p.m. 

C. Resolution Amending the FY 2024-2025 City Operating Budget to Accept and Appropriate the 
Amount of $10,000 Received as a Donation from the Franklin Southampton Charities for Use 
by the Franklin Fire Department and the Hunterdale Volunteer Fire Department 

City Manager Oglesby presented the following resolution for approval. 



34 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 

 



35 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 

Councilman Kitchen returned at 7:38 p.m. 

A motion was made by Councilman McLemore and seconded by Councilwoman Banks to approve 
Resolution Amending the FY 2024-2025 City Operating Budget to Accept and Appropriate the Amount 
of $10,000 Received as a Donation from the Franklin Southampton Charities for Use by the Franklin 
Fire Department and the Hunterdale Volunteer Fire Department. 

The motion carried the vote 6-0 

The vote was as follows: 

Ayes:  Johnson, Kitchen, Banks, Copeland, Cutchins, McLemore 

Absent:  Smith 

D. Resolution Amending the FY 2024-2025 City Operating Budget to Accept Grant Revenue in the 
Amount of $276.38 from the Carl D. Perkins Career And Technical Education Act, and 
Appropriate Said Amount for Use by the Franklin City Public School in its FY 2024-2025 
Operating Budget 

City Manager Oglesby presented the following resolution for approval. 



36 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 

 



37 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 

A motion was made by Councilman Johnson and seconded by Vice-Mayor Copeland to approve the 
Resolution Amending the FY 2024-2025 City Operating Budget to Accept Grant Revenue in the 
Amount of $276.38 from the Carl D. Perkins Career And Technical Education Act, and Appropriate Said 
Amount for Use by the Franklin City Public School in its FY 2024-2025 Operating Budget. 

The motion carried the vote 6-0 

The vote was as follows: 

Ayes:  Johnson, Kitchen, Banks, Copeland, Cutchins, McLemore 

Absent:  Smith 

E. Resolution Amending the FY 2024-2025 City Operating Budget to Accept Grant Revenue in the 
Amount of $50,000 from the Wallace Foundation, and Appropriate Said Amount for Use by the 
Franklin City Public School in its FY 2024-2025 Operating Budget 

City Manager Oglesby presented the following resolution for approval. 



38 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 

 



39 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 

A motion was made by Councilman McLemore and seconded by Vice-Mayor Copeland to approve the 
Resolution Amending the FY 2024-2025 City Operating Budget to Accept Grant Revenue in the 
Amount of $50,000 from the Wallace Foundation, and Appropriate Said Amount for Use by the 
Franklin City Public School in its FY 2024-2025 Operating Budget. 

The motion carried the vote 6-0 

The vote was as follows: 

Ayes:  Johnson, Kitchen, Banks, Copeland, Cutchins, McLemore 

Absent:  Smith 

F. Resolution Amending the Franklin City Employee Emergency Fund 

City Manager Oglesby presented the following resolution for approval. 



40 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 

 



41 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 

A motion was made by Councilman Johnson and seconded by Vice-Mayor Copeland to approve the 
Resolution Amending the Franklin City Employee Emergency Fund. Discussion:  Councilman 
McLemore asked how much was in the fund. City Manager stated approximately $11,800. Councilman 
McLemore asked if that money has been there since the 70s. City Manager explained that the first 
amendment was in 1975; therefore, the funds were probably there when it was first brought to council. 
Councilman McLemore asked for clarity on the language change in the resolution. City Manager stated 
that where it states “or members of the immediate families of present or former employees of the City” 
to be removed from the resolution. 

The motion carried the vote 6-0 

The vote was as follows: 

Ayes:  Johnson, Kitchen, Banks, Copeland, Cutchins, McLemore 

Absent:  Smith 

G. Resolution Honoring the Life and Legacy of Bishop Stephen D. Willis, Sr. 

City Manager Oglesby presented the following resolution for approval and it was read by Vice-Mayor 
Copeland. 



42 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 

 



43 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES | December 9, 2024 

A motion was made by Councilwoman Banks and seconded by Councilman Johnson to approve the 
Resolution Honoring the Life and Legacy of Bishop Stephen D. Willis, Sr. 

The motion carried the vote 6-0 

The vote was as follows: 

Ayes:  Johnson, Kitchen, Banks, Copeland, Cutchins, McLemore 

Absent:  Smith 

Councilman McLemore asked if we were having the annual employee Christmas party. City Manager 
stated yes; this Friday. 

Councilman McLemore also made comments in reference to a request coming forth to rename a street 
after Bishop Willis and asked that the City Manager find the necessary requirements for street naming. 

Council/Staff Reports on Boards/Commissions 

Councilman Kitchen made comments in reference to a conversation he had with the Social Services 
Director stating that he had one more year to serve on the Advisory Board 

Councilman McLemore stated that he did not mind serving with him. 

Councilman Johnson made comments in reference to the Western Tidewater Regional Jail Authority 
meetings, extended his thanks to Mayor Cutchins and gave kudos to staff and City Manager for the 
Christmas Parade 

Adjournment  

A motion was made by Councilman Kitchen and seconded by Councilwoman Banks to adjourn the 
December 9, 2024 City Council Meeting at 7:51 p.m.  

The motion carried the vote 6-0 

The vote was as follows:  

Ayes:  Johnson, Kitchen, Banks, Copeland, Cutchins, McLemore 

Absent:  Smith 

Mayor Bobby Cutchins stated the meeting stands adjourned.  

 

 

               
Mayor        Deputy Clerk to City Council 



 
2025 CITY COUNCIL APPROVED SCHEDULE 

 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

207 W. 2nd Ave, Franklin, VA 23851 
Telephone: (757) 562-8508 Fax: (757) 562-7982 

City Web Site: www.franklinva.com  

Date Time Meeting 
Wednesday, January 1st Closed City Holiday 

Monday, January 13th  5:30 PM 
7:00 PM 

Work Session (Tentative) 
Regular Meeting 

Monday, January 20th Closed City Holiday 
Monday, January 27th 5:30 PM 

7:00 PM 
Work Session (Tentative) 

Regular Meeting 
Monday, February 10th  5:30 PM 

7:00 PM 
Work Session (Tentative) 

Regular Meeting 
Monday, February 17th Closed City Holiday 
Monday, February 24th 5:30 PM 

7:00 PM 
Work Session (Tentative) 

Regular Meeting 
Monday, March 10th 5:30 PM 

7:00 PM 
Work Session (Tentative) 

Regular Meeting 
Thursday, March 13th   School Bd Budget Submitted to City Mgr 
Monday, March 24th 5:30 PM 

7:00 PM 
Work Session (Tentative) 

Regular Meeting 
March 31st  6:00 PM Budget Presentation 

Monday, April 14th 5:30 PM 
7:00 PM 

Budget Work Session (Tentative) 
Regular Meeting 

Monday, April 28th 5:30 PM 
7:00 PM 

Budget Work Session (Tentative) 
Regular Meeting 

*Public Hearing on Operating/CIP Budgets 
Monday, May 12th 5:30 PM 

7:00 PM 
Budget Work Session (Tentative) 

Regular Meeting 
*Public Hearing on Operating/CIP Budgets 

Monday, May 26th Closed City Holiday 
Monday, June 9th 5:30 PM 

7:00 PM 
Work Session (Tentative) 

Regular Meeting 
*Budget Adoption 

Thursday, June 19th Closed City Holiday 
Monday, June 23rd 5:30 PM 

7:00 PM 
Work Session (Tentative) 

Regular Meeting 
Friday, July 4th Closed City Holiday 

http://www.franklinva.com/


 
2025 CITY COUNCIL APPROVED SCHEDULE 

 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

207 W. 2nd Ave, Franklin, VA 23851 
Telephone: (757) 562-8508 Fax: (757) 562-7982 

City Web Site: www.franklinva.com  

Monday, July 14th 5:30 PM 
7:00 PM 

Work Session (Tentative) 
Regular Meeting 

Monday, July 28th 5:30 PM 
7:00 PM 

Work Session (Tentative) 
Regular Meeting 

Monday, August 11th 5:30 PM 
7:00 PM 

Work Session (Tentative) 
Regular Meeting 

Monday, August 25th 5:30 PM 
7:00 PM 

Work Session (Tentative) 
Regular Meeting 

Monday, September 1st Closed City Holiday 
Monday, September 8th  5:30 PM 

7:00 PM 
Work Session (Tentative) 

Regular Meeting 
Monday, September 22nd 5:30 PM 

7:00 PM 
Work Session (Tentative) 

Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 13th Closed City Holiday 
Monday, October 27th 5:30 PM 

7:00 PM 
Work Session (Tentative) 

Regular Meeting 
Tuesday, November 4th Closed City Holiday 
Monday, November 10th 5:30 PM 

7:00 PM 
Work Session (Tentative) 

Regular Meeting 
Tuesday, November 11th Closed City Holiday 
Monday, November 24th 5:30 PM 

7:00 PM 
Work Session (Tentative) 

Regular Meeting 
Wednesday, November 26th Closed at Noon City Holiday 
Thursday, November 27-28th Closed City Holiday 

Monday, December 8th 5:30 PM 
7:00 PM 

Work Session (Tentative) 
Regular Meeting 

Thursday, December 11th 6:00 PM Joint City Council/School Board Meeting 
(Tentative) 

Monday, December 22th  No Meeting 
Wednesday, December 24th Closed at Noon City Holiday 
Thursday, December 25-26th Closed City Holiday 

 
Adopted this    day of   , 2025. 
 
 

http://www.franklinva.com/


 

 
City Manager’s Report 

Submitted by: Kimberly Turner, Executive Assistant/Deputy City Clerk 
January 13, 2025 

Item # 2025-1 
Title: Honoring the Memory of June Fleming 

 
Issue: 

• Adoption of the resolution honoring the memory of June Fleming. 
 

Background: 
• Mrs. June Fleming was a long servicing public servant who impacted the 

communities and many lives she touched throughout her exemplary career. 
• Ms. Fleming received several awards for her achievements and exceptional 

contributions to her profession and community. 
• Mrs. Fleming passed away on December 9, 2024. 

 
Discussion: 

• Mrs. June Fleming served as the Interim City Manager of Franklin, Virginia, for 
over three (3) years, where she improved local governance and community 
service, demonstrating a strong commitment to enhancing the quality of life for 
residents. 

• Through this resolution, City Council wants to express condolences to her family 
and friends and relays her legacy of leadership, dedication, and commitment to 
community service. 

 
Financial impact: 

• N/A. 
 

Recommended Action: 
• Approval of the resolution. 

 
Next Steps Following Council Action: 

• The family will receive a copy of the resolution. 
 

Attachments: 
• Resolution 

 
_______________________________ 

                              City Manager 



Resolution #2025-1 

 
A RESOLUTION HONORING THE MEMORY OF JUNE FLEMING 

 
WHEREAS, June Fleming, a distinguished leader and dedicated public servant, passed away on 
December 9, 2024, leaving a profound impact on her community and the many lives she touched 
throughout her exemplary career; 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Fleming served as the City Manager of Franklin, Virginia where her leadership 
and vision significantly improved local governance and community services, demonstrating an 
unwavering commitment to enhancing the quality of life for residents; 
 
WHEREAS, with more than 45 years of experience in public service and library science, Ms. 
Fleming inspired countless individuals as a chief librarian, high school librarian, associate 
professor, and a respected city manager, paving the way for future generations in her field; 
 
WHEREAS, her notable accomplishments included the Woman of the Year Award from the 
Women’s Resource Center in Palo Alto and the Chancellor's Award for Leadership in Philanthropy 
from the Virginia Community College System, reflecting her exceptional contributions to both her 
profession and the community; 
 
WHEREAS, June Fleming was an active member of several organizations, including the 
International City and County Managers Association and Delta Sigma Theta, dedicating her time 
and talents to serving others and promoting civic engagement; 
 
WHEREAS, June Fleming's legacy includes her profound belief in the importance of community 
service and her passion for library science, inspiring many to pursue careers that serve the greater 
good; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that we, the members of the Franklin City Council and 
those who were fortunate to know Ms. Fleming, honor her memory by upholding the values she 
embodied—leadership, dedication, and a commitment to service; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that we, the Franklin City Council, extend our deepest condolences 
to her family, friends, and all who were touched by her kindness, grace, and steadfast spirit; 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED that this resolution be presented as a lasting tribute to June 
Fleming’s extraordinary life and her enduring contributions to our community, serving as a 
reminder of the impact one individual can have on the world around them.  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of January 2025. 
 
 
              
Attest:                           Mayor, City Council 
 
      
Deputy Clerk, City Council 
 



 

 
City Manager’s Report 

Submitted by: Kimberly Turner, Executive Assistant/Deputy City Clerk 
January 13, 2025 

Item #2025-2 
Title: Honoring Former Councilman and Mayor Robert “Bobby” Cutchins, II 

Issue: 
• Adoption of the resolution honoring Robert “Bobby” Cutchins, II for his service and 

contributions to the community. 
 

Background: 
• Mr. Robert "Bobby" Cutchins, II began his service on the City Council, 

representing Ward 6 in 2017 through a Special General Election, and served until 
the end of 2022.  

• He was later elected Mayor, assuming office on January 1, 2023. 
• Mr. Cutchins’ last day on City Council was December 31, 2024. 

 
Discussion: 

• Mr. Robert “Bobby” Cutchins, II was born and raised in the Franklin/Southampton 
County where he is an advent community member, business owner, and public 
servant. 

• He worked tirelessly to help Franklin overcome its challenges, while focusing on 
economic development and education. 

• The City of Franklin appreciates his commitment to public service and leadership, 
setting an example for future leaders.  
 

Financial impact: 
• N/A. 

 
Recommended Action: 

• Approval of the resolution. 
 

Next Steps Following Council Action: 
• Mr. Cutchins will receive a copy of the resolution. 

 
Attachments: 

• Resolution 
_______________________________ 

                              City Manager 



Resolution #2025-2 

 
A RESOLUTION HONORING ROBERT "BOBBY" CUTCHINS, II FOR HIS SERVICE AND 

CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 
 

 
WHEREAS, Robert "Bobby" Cutchins, II, a dedicated and influential member of the Franklin/Southampton 
County community, has exemplified commitment and service in various capacities throughout his life; and 
 
WHEREAS, Bobby was born and raised in Franklin/Southampton County, where he contributed to the 
community as a business leader, public servant, and active member of numerous organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, Bobby graduated from Franklin High School in 1975 and went on to become the Founder and 
Chief Visionary Officer of Bobby's Tire & Auto Care, significantly impacting the local economy; and 
 
WHEREAS, he served as the Ward 6 City of Franklin City Council Member from May 2017 to December 
2022 and was appointed to the esteemed position of Franklin City Mayor from January 2023 through 
December 2024, leading with integrity and vision; and 
 
WHEREAS, Bobby held key roles on various boards, including serving as President of the Virginia 
Automotive Association and contributing to the Tire Pros National Board of Directors, where he promoted 
excellence in the automotive industry; and 
 
WHEREAS, his leadership extended to the Franklin/Southampton Chamber of Commerce, where he 
served both as a board member and as President, fostering economic development and community 
engagement; and 
 
WHEREAS, Bobby's community service included membership on the Franklin Municipal Airport Advisory 
Board and the International Paper Community Advisory Board, where he provided valuable insights and 
leadership; and 
 
WHEREAS, he was recognized as the Franklin/Southampton County Business Person of the Year in 1993, 
honoring his dedication to local business and community welfare; and 
 
WHEREAS, Bobby Cutchins' service on numerous panels and advisory boards has made a lasting impact 
on our community and continues to inspire those around him;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Franklin expresses its heartfelt gratitude 
and appreciation to Robert "Bobby" Cutchins, II for his outstanding contributions and dedication to the 
citizens of Franklin/Southampton County.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution be spread upon the official records of the City Council, 
and that a copy be presented to Robert “Bobby” Cutchins, II as a token of our esteem and respect. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of January 2025. 
 
 

____________________________   
Mayor, City of Franklin 

 
Attest:        
 
 
      
Deputy Clerk, City Council 



 

 
City Manager’s Report 

Submitted by: Kimberly Turner, Executive Assistant/Deputy City Clerk 
January 13, 2025 

Item #2025-3 
Title: Honoring Former Councilman Ray Smith 

 
Issue: 

• Adoption of the resolution honoring Ray Smith for his service and contributions to 
the community. 
 

Background: 
• Mr. Smith was elected to City Council on July 1, 2020 representing Ward 2. 
• Mr. Smith’s last day on City Council was December 31, 2024. 

 
 

Discussion: 
• Mr. Ray Smith is a business leader, public servant, and active community 

member.  
• In addition to serving on the City Council, he served on the Planning Commission 

and Airport Advisory Board. 
• While on the City Council, Mr. Smith focused on economic growth and enhancing 

local infrastructure and community programs. 
• The City of Franklin appreciates his commitment to public service and leadership, 

setting an example for future leaders.  
 

Financial impact: 
• N/A. 

 
Recommended Action: 

• Approval of the resolution. 
 

Next Steps Following Council Action: 
• Mr. Smith will receive a copy of the resolution. 

 
Attachments: 

• Resolution 
_______________________________ 

                              City Manager 



Resolution #2025-3 

 
A RESOLUTION HONORING RAY SMITH FOR HIS SERVICE AND CONTRIBUTIONS TO 

THE COMMUNITY 
 
 
WHEREAS, Ray Smith has proudly served as a Councilman for the City of Franklin from July 1, 
2020, to December 31, 2024, representing Ward 2 with dedication and commitment; and 
 
WHEREAS, prior to his election as Councilman, Ray contributed significantly to the community 
through twelve years of service on the Planning Commission, seven years on the Airport Advisory 
Board, and numerous years helping to revitalize the downtown corridor; and 
 
WHEREAS, during his tenure, Ray Smith has focused on promoting economic growth in the City 
of Franklin, ensuring a vibrant and prosperous community for all residents; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ray’s leadership and vision have greatly impacted the enhancement of local 
infrastructure, community programs, and business development initiatives that benefit the citizens 
of Franklin; and 
 
WHEREAS, his consistent commitment to public service, collaboration, and community 
engagement has set a remarkable example for future leaders; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Franklin recognizes and appreciates the valuable contributions made by 
Ray Smith during his time in office, which have positively shaped the future of our city; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of Franklin does hereby honor and 
commend Ray Smith for his outstanding service, dedication, and leadership, and extends best 
wishes for his future endeavors. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution be spread upon the official records of the City 
Council, and that a copy be presented to Ray Smith as a token of our esteem and respect. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of January 2025. 
 
 

____________________________   
Mayor, City of Franklin 

 
 
Attest:        
 
 
      
Deputy Clerk, City Council 
 



 

 
City Manager’s Report 

Submitted by: Melisa Blythe, Financial Accountant II 
January 13, 2025 

Item #2025-4 
Title: Budget Amendment – Camp Family Foundations Grant 

Issue: 
• Adoption of a resolution amending the FY 2024 – 2025 City Operating Budget to accept and appropriate 

the amount of $77,220 received as a donation from the Camp Family Foundations to the Foundation 
Grant Funds for use by the Franklin Police Department, Franklin Fire Department, and the Hunterdale 
Volunteer Fire Department. 
 

Background: 
• The Camp Foundation, Ruth Camp Campbell Foundation, and Camp-Younts Foundation are 

grantmaking foundations created by members of the Camp family and other local leaders to serve the 
community of Franklin, Virginia, and other worthwhile charitable organizations. Under the umbrella of the 
Elms Foundation, the three foundations seek to hire an Executive Director to guide the work of each 
entity. 
 

Discussion: 
• The Camp Family Foundations awarded a total of $77,220 from each of its individual family foundations. 

Each foundation awarded as follows: 
o Camp Foundation      $30,250 
o Ruth Camp Campbell Foundation     $30,970 
o Camp-Younts Foundation – Trustee Megan M. Harrell $16,000 

• The award is slated for allocation as follows: 
o Franklin Fire & Rescue Department  $57,500 
o Hunterdale Volunteer Fire Department $  5,720 
o Franklin Police Department   $14,000 

 
Financial impact: 

• The FY 2024 – 2025 City Operating Budget and Foundation Grant Funds will increase by said amount.  
 

Recommended Action: 
• Approval of the resolution. 

 
Next Steps Following Council Action: 

• The City Manager will work with the appropriate staff to make the necessary changes. 
 

Attachments: 
• Resolution 
• Award Letter 

 
 

_______________________________ 
                                                   City Manager 

 
 



Agenda 
Franklin City Council 

January 13, 2025 

 
 
BUDGET AMENDMENT 2025-8 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, VIRGINIA that the 
2024-2025 City Budget is hereby amended to: 
 

1. Recognize grant revenue from the Camp Foundation for Franklin Fire & Rescue, Franklin 
Police Department, and the Hunterdale Volunteer Fire Department and to appropriate such 
revenue for use; 
 

 

2024-2025 AMENDED INCREASE
BUDGET BUDGET (DECREASE)

220 FOUNDATION GRANT FUND
REVENUE

220-3-18990-3000 Camp Family Foundation Grants -$                      77,220$            77,220               
77,220               

EXPENDITURES
220-4-31100-5848 Camp Foundation Grant Police -$                      14,000$            14,000               
220-4-32100-5848 Camp Foundation Grant Fire -                        57,500              57,500               
220-4-91450-4009 Hunterdale Volunteer Fire Dept 10,000                  15,720              5,720                 

77,220               

 
 
Certified copy of resolution adopted by Franklin City Council 
 
 
 
                                                                                                    ______________________   
                                                                                                   Deputy Clerk to the City Council                                
      



 

 
City Manager’s Report 

Submitted by: Melisa Blythe, Financial Accountant II 
January 13, 2025 

Item #2025-5 
Title: Budget Amendment – Franklin Southampton Charities Grant 

Issue: 
• Adoption of a resolution amending the FY 2024 – 2025 City Operating Budget to accept and appropriate 

the amount of $10,000 received as a donation from the Franklin Southampton Charities to the Foundation 
Grant Funds for use by the Franklin Fire Department and the Hunterdale Volunteer Fire Department. 
 

Background: 
• The Franklin Southampton Charities Foundation, established in 2000 in Virginia, sources its assets from 

the Southampton Memorial Hospital Endowment Fund and the sale of the hospital to Franklin Hospital 
Corporation. It aims to support nonprofit organizations in its service area by providing funding and 
promoting community leadership.  

• Funding priorities focus on programs that benefit youth and older people, enhance educational skills, 
provide job training, and foster community cooperation. The foundation prioritizes projects that address 
diverse community needs, assist underserved individuals, encourage additional funding, promote 
collaboration across jurisdictions, and ensure significant community impact with clear evaluation 
methods. 

 
Discussion: 

• The Franklin Southampton Charities Foundation awarded the Franklin Fire Department and the 
Hunterdale Volunteer Fire Department $5,000 each, for a total of $10,000. 

• This is the second grant received from the Franklin Southampton Charities Foundation. City Council 
previously accepted and appropriated the first grant at its December 9, 2024 Business Meeting. 

• Each department is required to report back on the use of the funds prior to April 1. 
 

Financial impact: 
• The FY 2024 – 2025 City Operating Budget and Foundation Grant Funds will increase by said amount.  

 
Recommended Action: 

• Approval of the resolution. 
 

Next Steps Following Council Action: 
• The City Manager will work with the appropriate staff to make the necessary changes. 

 
Attachments: 

• Resolution 
• Award Letter 

 
 

_______________________________ 
                                                   City Manager 

 
 



Agenda 
Franklin City Council 

January 13, 2025 

 
 
BUDGET AMENDMENT 2025-9 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, VIRGINIA that the 
2024-2025 City Budget is hereby amended to: 
 

1. Recognize grant revenue from Franklin Southampton Charities for the Franklin Fire 
Department and Hunterdale Fire Department and to appropriate such revenue for use. 
 

 
 

2024-2025 AMENDED INCREASE
BUDGET BUDGET (DECREASE)

220 FOUNDATION GRANT FUND
REVENUE

220-3-18990-3001 Franklin/Southampton Charities 10,000$                20,000$            10,000               
10,000               

EXPENDITURES
220-4-32100-8117 Fire Prevention - Other Grants 5,000$                  10,000$            5,000                 
220-4-91450-4009 Hunterdale Volunteer Fire Dept 5,000                    10,000              5,000                 

10,000               

 
 
Certified copy of resolution adopted by Franklin City Council 
 
 
 
                                                                                                    ______________________   
                                                                                                   Deputy Clerk to the City Council                                
      



 
Boards & Commissions 

Agenda Statement 
Item #2025-6 

January 13, 2025 
 
Item Title: Appointment to Virginia Municipal Electric Association (VMEA) and Eastern Virginia 
Regional Industrial Facilities Authority (EVRIFA) 
 
Submitted by: Kimberly Turner, Executive Assistant/Deputy City Clerk 
 
Summary Explanation: 
 
To make an appointment to the Virginia Municipal Electric Association (VMEA) in replacement 
of former Director Zachary Wright and to make an appointment to the Eastern Virginia Regional 
Industrial Facilities Authority (EVRIFA) to replace former Interim City Manager Darlene 
Burcham. 
 
Item Budgeted:  
 
N/A 
 
Strategic Priority: 
N/A 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
N/A 
 
Recommended Action: 
 
To appoint Mr. Wendell Adkison to the Virginia Municipal Electric Association (VMEA) and 
appoint Ms. Rosylen Oglesby to the Eastern Virginia Regional Industrial Facilities Authority 
(EVRIFA) 
 
Next Steps Following Council Action: 
 
Letter sent to VMEA notifying of appointment 
Letter sent to EVRIFA notifying of appointment 
 
Attachments: 
 
Current Appointment to VMEA and EVRIFA 
Bylaws of VMEA and EVRIFA 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Rosylen Oglesby 
City Manager 



VIRGINIA MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION  

 

Members: One (1) member appointed by City Council.  
Type: Non-profit, non-stock corporation created by member jurisdictions.  
Meets: Monthly, 2nd Thursday, Jefferson Hotel, Richmond, 10:00 a.m. 
Term:  1 year – non limit on reappointments. 
Duties:  Represent the seven (7) municipalities that buy power from Virginia Power in 

contract negotiations. Monitor rates and discuss pending legislation, SEPA power 
allocations and load management programs.  

 

 

 

Mr. Zachary Wright 
Director of Power & Light  

1050 Pretlow Street 
Franklin, VA 23851 

757-562-8568 





























Updated 1/23 
 

EASTERN VIRGINIA REGIONAL INDUSTRIAL FACILITY AUTHORITY  

 

Members:  
Type:  
Meets:  
Term:  
Duties:  
Mission:  

   

 
 
 

Robert “Bobby” Cutchins 
Mayor 

207 W 2nd Ave 
Franklin, VA 23851 

franklincitymayor@franklinva.com 
 

Megan Council 
209 Meadow Lane 
Franklin, VA 23851 
November 2021- 

Karl Heck 
Alternate 

601 N. Mechanic Street 
Franklin, VA 23851 

kheck@franklinsouthamptonva.com 
November 2021- 

Darlene Burcham, Alternate 
Interim City Manager 
207 West Second Ave 

Franklin, VA 23851 
dburcham@franklinva.com 

mailto:franklincitymayor@franklinva.com
mailto:kheck@franklinsouthamptonva.com














 
 

Council Comments 
Agenda Statement 

Item #2025-7 
January 13, 2025 

 
Item Title: Renaming and Honorary Street Policies 
 
Submitted by: Rosylen Oglesby, City Manager 
 
Summary Explanation: 
 
To discuss establishing policies that will help provide guidance to the community who seek to 
rename or install an honorary on an existing street. 
 
Item Budgeted:  
 
N/A 
 
Strategic Priority: 
N/A 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
N/A 
 
Recommended Action: 
 
No action is needed. 
 
Next Steps Following Council Action: 
 
Staff will make the necessary recommended changes to the draft. 
 
Attachments: 
 
Samples of Renaming and Honorary Street Policies 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Rosylen Oglesby 
City Manager 



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 

HONORARY STREET NAME DESIGNATION POLICY 
 
Purpose 
To establish a policy to administer requests for honorary street name designations and provide 
application and approval criteria and procedures for honorary street name designations of city-
owned streets.  
 
Background 
Honorary street signs allow posthumously recognizing former City of Franklin residents, 
community leaders, or groups who have made significant contributions to the City, State of 
Virginia, or the United States of America. The honorary street name identifies a specific portion 
of a City street with an individual name in honor of that person. The honorary street name 
supplements the permanent street name and does not change the permanent street name 
designation, nor does it require residents and businesses fronting on the street to change their 
address. It also does not attempt to regulate honorary street names on private streets and 
driveways. 
 
General Policy 
The Honorary Street Name Designation Policy allows citizens and groups to honor deceased 
individuals or groups who have made significant contributions to the community, subject to 
approval by the City Council. The impact must be well documented and broadly acknowledged 
within the community and the City of Franklin. The Community Development Department 
manages and processes the program, and the Public Works Department administers the 
installations. 
 
Provisions 

A. Definitions and General Guidelines.   
1. Honoree means a deceased individual or group whom the application specifies for 

an honorary street name designation who has made a significant contribution to 
the City of Franklin community, either through civic involvement, cultural, 
humanitarian, historical, or military achievement, as part of a historic event relevant 
to the specific City street; or to the geographical location of the particular street. 
Said contributions do not have to be financial. 
  

2. Honorary street name designations shall reflect recognition of Honorees only and 
are given on a case-by-case basis, solely as determined by the City Council by 
majority vote and approved Resolution.  

 
3. A completed application and letter of consent signed by the Honoree’s estate 

representative must be submitted prior to City Council consideration and approval.  
 

4. The City Manager shall determine when the application will be presented to City 
Council for consideration.  

 



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

5. Only one honorary street name designation sign shall be allowed on a single street 
sign pole below the City’s standard street sign and shall be dark brown in color 
with white lettering and a white border shall include “Honorary” above the name 
and is the same size as the standard City of Franklin Street named sign. Should 
the applicant request a sign on each side of the street at both intersections of a 
block, the applicant must pay two separate fees (one for each sign). The honorary 
street name can only be placed on local streets. 

 
6. Honorary street name designations will be temporarily displayed for five years 

unless otherwise approved by the City Council by a majority vote. At the end of the 
five years, the City will remove the honorary street name sign and, upon request, 
make it available to the applicant or the applicant’s representative.  

 
7. If the applicant or applicant’s representative desires to apply for another five-year 

term at the end of the five years, renewals will be handled like new requests with 
all applicable rules and fees in effect. The applicant must resubmit an application 
and undergo the same City Council review and approval process as initially taken.  

 
8. The City has the right to remove any honorary street name sign before the end of 

the five years as directed by the Council by majority vote.  
 

9. Only one honorary street name designation sign shall be allowed at an 
intersection, and the portion of a street so designated shall be one City block long 
and limited to no more than two signs per block (one at each end of the selected 
block). 

 
10. No honorary street name designation sign shall be used that will duplicate or could 

be confused with the name of an existing City street.   
 

11. Whenever possible, honorary street name designation signs shall be limited to the 
right-of-way area within the vicinity of the home, organization, or locations 
associated with the Honoree.   

 
12. A fee of $400.00 is required at the time of application to cover all costs associated 

with the design, fabrication, and installation of the sign(s). If multiple sign locations 
are requested and approved, each sign location shall be charged a fee of 
$400.00.  This fee shall be payable to the City of Franklin and deposited in the 
City’s General Fund. 

 
13. If the application is not approved, the fee(s) will be refunded in full. If the City 

Council rejects the request, two (2) years shall pass before the request can be 
resubmitted for consideration. 

 
14. The design and font of the honorary sign will be standard and consistent. No 

embellishments, decals, or logos will be permitted. 
 

15. Should the sign become defaced, damaged, or otherwise ruined, the City will 
contact the applicant. Up to one replacement sign may be covered by the City 
unless approved by the City Council by a majority vote.  

 
 



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

B. Qualification Criteria for Approving Honorary Street Designation 
1. Only Honorees are eligible for consideration for honorary street name designation 

as defined above. 
 

2. The Honoree must have provided creditable service to the community and has 
attained prominence locally based on contributions to the public. 

 
3. The Honorary street names should reflect the City of Franklin’s values and 

community interests. 
 

C. Procedure for Filing and Approving Applications.  
1. The applicant shall submit a completed honorary street name designation 

application and letter of consent and pay the $400.00 fee to the Community 
Development Department located at 207 West Second Avenue, Franklin, Virginia 
23851. Upon receipt of the application and fee, the Community Development 
Department shall submit the application to the Public Works Department for their 
review and a recommendation prior to City Council’s consideration.   
 

2. These departments will review the application to ensure sufficient documentation 
exists to substantiate the applicant’s request and that the location desired for the 
honorary street name designation is feasible.  

 
3. If the application satisfies the criteria established, the City Manager shall determine 

when the application will be presented to the City Council for consideration. The 
City Council will review the honorary street name designation application during a 
public meeting in which public comments are taken.  If approved by City Council 
by majority vote, a Resolution will be entered.   

 
4. The Community Development Department will notify the applicant of the City 

Council’s decision, and if approved, the Public Works Department will proceed to 
fabricate an honorary street name sign. Public Works will determine the sign 
installation date and notify the applicant.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
 

Application for Honorary Street Name Designation 
 
 
Name of Person/Group requesting designation:___________________________________         
 
 
Address:  

 
 

Contact Phone Number:  
 
 

Email Address:  
 

 
 
Location of requested 
designation: 
(Include Proper Street 
Name and intersecting 
streets at each end of the 
street segment to be 
designated) 

 

 
 
Name of Honoree: 
(As it would appear on the street 
sign) 
 

 

Reasons supporting honorary 
designation: 
(Include significant relevance to the 
City of Franklin) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Applicant acknowledges the responsibility of the cost of sign(s). 
Signature: 
 

Date: 

 



(1)

(2)

Sec. 14-125. - Street names.

Purpose: The purpose of this article is to provide for uniform system of standards for naming streets,

fabrication, installation, and maintenance of street name signs to assist emergency response personnel, law

enforcement agencies, the Post Office, and the general public in delivering timely and efficient services to

residents.

Administration: The subdivision agent as appointed by the board of supervisors shall be responsible for

the administration, implementation, and enforcement of this article.

The board of supervisors shall establish street names during their review and approval of final

subdivision plats. Subdivision plats with street names that are not required to be reviewed by the board of

supervisors shall be administered by the agent. Requests to change the name(s) of existing streets may be

initiated:

By resolution of the board of supervisors; or

By petition containing signatures of a majority of landowners of said street along with a

review fee of five hundred dollars ($500.00) to the agent.

In either case, the agent shall forward the request to the planning commission for public hearing and

review. The board of supervisors shall hold a public hearing after receiving a recommendation from the

planning commission on the request.

Administrative guidelines: The agent shall review and administer street names in accordance with

following guidelines:

Choice of names: Names should be easy to pronounce and pleasant sounding, appropriate and easy to

read so the public and emergency personnel can adequately understand the street name in the event of

emergency. Where appropriate, names that promote the history of the county may be utilized. Surnames of

living persons should not be used, except pioneering families or historically significant names.

Unconventional spelling, slang, and obscene language shall not be used. The use of hyphens, apostrophes

or dashes shall not be permitted.

Duplication: The use of similar sounding names is to be avoided including the duplication of names with

different suffixes. The agent shall review the names to avoid duplication of existing street names that

already may be in use in the incorporated towns or adjacent localities.

Continuity: Continuous roads or road route numbers shall bear the same name, when practical. Street

names within the incorporated towns should continue to be utilize the name when continuing into county

jurisdiction, when practical.

1/9/25, 8:34 AM Southampton County, VA Code of Ordinances

about:blank 1/3



School roads: Public streets designated to serve public schools (VDOT 9000 series) may be assigned

names at the discretion of the agent. However, school addresses shall be assigned to the primary road in

which the 9000 series road connects to.

Characters and suffixes: All street names shall not exceed twenty (20) characters and shall be described

in capital letters. This limit does not include the suffix. Each street name shall contain a suffix consisting of

one of the following. The use of directional suffixes (north, south, east, west) shall not be permitted. The

abbreviated listings are also shown.

Highway Hwy

Boulevard Blvd

Parkway Pkwy

Pike Pke

Road Rd

Street St

Drive Dr

Lane Ln

Avenue Ave

Trail Trl

Terrace Trce

Loop Loop

Circle Crcle

Way Way

Court Ct

1/9/25, 8:34 AM Southampton County, VA Code of Ordinances

about:blank 2/3



Place Pl

Other suffixes not listed above may be considered for approval at the discretion of the agent.

Coordination: The agent, upon approval of street names, shall provide the information to all appropriate

agencies including the county Geographic Information System, the Virginia Department of Transportation,

the Sheriff's Office, the United States Postal Office, and all other applicable federal, state and local agencies.

(Ord. of 1-26-09; Ord. of 9-22-20)

1/9/25, 8:34 AM Southampton County, VA Code of Ordinances

about:blank 3/3



Remit Application to: City of Suffolk Department of Planning and Community Development 

442 West Washington Street • P.O. Box 1858, Suffolk, VA 23434 • (757) 514-4060  

City of Suffolk Department of Planning 

APPLICATION FOR STREET NAME CHANGE 

PART 2- GENERAL INFORMATION: To be completed by applicant 

Important Notice: Applications must be submitted in hard copy with original signatures. 
Incomplete applications will not be accepted. Street name changes must be approved by City Council 

only after they are reviewed by the Director and support is received from seventy-five percent (75%) of all 

affected property owners. Please review the processing procedures stated on the following page and the 

list of required submittal information prior to completing this application. 

Application Fee: $341.25
 
 
 

Current Street Name: ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Route Number (if applicable): ____________________________________________________________ 

 
Proposed Street Name:  _________________________________________________________________ 

 
 Petitioner’s Name(s): ___________________________________________________________________ 

 
 Petitioner’s Address: ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Phone Number: ______________________________   Email: ______________________________ 

 
Summary as to why you are seeking this change (attach full narrative): ___________________________ 

 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_
___________________________________________________________________________________. 

PART 1- OFFICE INFORMATION: To be completed by staff 

Application Number: Date Submitted: 

Project Address: Project Name: 

Tax Query:  Current  Delinquent Application Fee Paid: 

Decision:  Approved     Denied Date of Decision: 

bcolyer
Line



Remit Application to: City of Suffolk Department of Planning and Community Development 

442 West Washington Street • P.O. Box 1858, Suffolk, VA 23434 • (757) 514-4060  

PART 3- REVIEW PROCEDURE: To be reviewed by applicant 

The following procedure applies to street name changes requested by private citizens. 

1. 1. The Director must determine that the proposed street name meets the following criteria: 1) is not a 

duplicate, 2) no directions are in the name, 3) the name is no more than 14 characters, 4) is not 

offensive, and 5) is designated as a boulevard, circle, court, drive, lane, parkway, road, or street 

according to the type of roadway based on the classification as contained in the City’s Master 

Thoroughfare Plan.  

2. 2. A letter will be mailed to all of the affected property owners and the affected owners will indicate 

whether they agreee or disagree to the proposed change. 

3. Copies of subdivision plats and/or physical surveys.

4. 3. If approved by City Council, the street name change will not be effective for thirty (30) days so that 

sign fees can be paid by the petitioner and the signs can be fabricated and posted. A letter is sent to 

the petitioner informing him/her of the results and costs for making and installing the new street sign. 

The new street sign will not be made nor installed until the City receives full payment from the 

petitioner. Once the required payments are made by the petitioner, the Planning & Community 

Development Director will send a memorandum to the Department of Public Works informing 

them of receipt of the required payment and to fabricate and post the street sign. 

5. 4. The Director of Planning & Community Development notifies all affected property owners, City 

Departments and agencies, the Post Office, and all utility companies of the street name change and 

effective date. 

PART 4- REQUIRED INFORMATION FOR APPLICATION: To be completed by applicant 

The applicant must INITIAL next to each item and ATTACH materials in the order that is listed below. 

1. Full narrative explaining reasons for requested street name change. __________ 

2. One (1) copy of a location map accurately showing the location of the referenced

street reduced to a paper size not more than 11” x 17”. __________ 

3. A list of the names and addresses of all persons, firms, or corporations owning all

properties affected by the street name change and the tax map number of such

properties. Affected property owners include owners of all properties that abut the

street in question whether containing an occupied dwelling or not.

Note to the Petitioner: It is highly recommended that the petitioner seek input from

affected property owners and solicit their support of the street name change prior to

filing the request with the Planning Division. It is the City’s policy that seventy-five

percent (75%) of all affected property owners must agree to street name changes

initiated by a citizen, or the request will not be approved.

__________ 

4. I understand that the costs associated with this request, including postage, the

creation and posting of new street signs, are my responsibility and I agree to pay all

costs associated with this request.

__________ 



Rebuilding our Foundation for a Brighter Future

City of
Honorary Street Naming Ordinance & Program

 1



Rebuilding our Foundation for a Brighter Future

➢The purpose  is to honor individuals and/
or organizations that have gone far beyond what was or 
could have been expected in contributing to the quality 
of life of the City of Petersburg.  

➢The proposed Honorary Street Naming Program will 
provide an alternate, streamlined process to honor 
deserving individuals and/or organizations.

Purpose

 2



Rebuilding our Foundation for a Brighter Future

➢This ordinance adds new section 98.52 to the City of 
Petersburg Municipal Code: 

  City Council may, by Resolution, confer honorary 
names to public streets controlled and maintained by the 
City to honor individuals (living or posthumously)  and/or 
organizations that are of particular importance to the City 
of Petersburg or which have made significant contributions 
to improving the quality of life in the City and may allow 
for the installation of appropriate signage, which shall be 
distinct from and shall not change or replace existing street 
names and signs.

Existing Code Chapter 98 Streets, Sidewalks and Other Public Places  

 3



Rebuilding our Foundation for a Brighter Future

Honorary Street Name Examples & Cost   
 
➢Asalie Minor Preston sign is lowered 

from the public street to show a clear 
distinction preventing any confusion. 
(Pictured right; Charlottesville, Virginia) 

➢Staff has received updated estimates that 
the honorary street sign would cost 
approx. $65 per sign. 

 



Rebuilding our Foundation for a Brighter Future

➢Sign blade dimensions: maximum 
height of 10 inches and width 
no greater than the existing official 
street name sign blades.  

➢Color: brown background with 
white border and white lettering. 
The legend will include the label       
“ *Honorary*” centered above 
the honoree’s name.  

➢Mounted on existing signposts, 
above or below the official 
street name sign blades. 



Rebuilding our Foundation for a Brighter Future

1. City of Petersburg residents or natives or individuals/
organizations of particular importance to the City of 
Petersburg. 

o Deceased/Posthumously individuals only unless waived by a 
majority vote of the City Council.  

2. An organization shall have been in operation for a 
minimum of 25 consecutive years and have its base 
operations in the City or be of particular importance to 
the City.  

3. Statement why the proposed honoree is historically or 
culturally significant to the City of Petersburg,  

4.  Evidence of support by community members and/or 
local community-based organizations.  

5. Location of proposed honorary street name designation. 



Rebuilding our Foundation for a Brighter Future

In order for an honorary street name 
to be declared:  

1) Proponent completes application 
and submits application to the 
Department of General Services 

2) Director of General Services 
reviews for consistency with and 
satisfaction of published criteria 
and requirements;  

3)  General Services staff processes 
request for Council Action/
resolution.  

4) The resolution shall be approved 
by the City Council 



Rebuilding our Foundation for a Brighter Future

➢Staff recommends adoption of the attached 
ordinance to adopt section 98-52 of the City 
Code to allow for the use of Honorary Street 
Names.



Rebuilding our Foundation for a Brighter Future

City of
Honorary Street Naming Program 

 9



Honorary Street Name Designation Policy | July 26, 2022

City of Portsmouth

Honorary Street Name 
Designation Policy



Briefing Purpose
To explain the proposed policy for honorary street name 
designations

● Objectives of the Program
● Background
● Definition
● Sign Description and Placement
● Qualifications
● Application process
● Costs

Honorary Street Name Designation Policy | July 26, 2022



Objectives of Program

● To ensure that street name designations are “honorary” and at the discretion 
of City Council.

● To ensure that streets continue to retain their official name and remain easily 
identifiable. 

● To ensure that street name designations are accepted by the 
community/consistent with City values. 

● To encourage the recognition of individuals and groups for their contribution 
to the community.

Honorary Street Name Designation Policy | July 26, 2022



Background

● Portsmouth currently allows citizens to request a change to the official name 
of a city street, however, City Council may determine if the change is an 
honorary designation or a permanent name change. 

● Sec. 33.1-55 9 (c) of the Portsmouth City Codes states: “Names of existing 
streets or subdivisions shall not be changed except by approval of the governing 
body.” 

● This is the only adopted and codified reference regarding the renaming of city 
streets. 

Honorary Street Name Designation Policy | July 26, 2022



Definition

● Honorary street name signs are intended to recognize and honor the citywide 
contribution, impact, or fame of individuals or groups.  

● The placement of the signs posted above standard city street name signs 
does not change the official name of the street or the official addresses of 
residences and businesses on the street.

Honorary Street Name Designation Policy | July 26, 2022



Qualifications

The following criteria shall be used in determining the appropriateness of the 
designation:

● An individual or group of historical or cultural significance.
● An individual or group that has made a significant positive impact on the city, 

state or country. This impact must be well documented and broadly 
acknowledged within the community and by the City of Portsmouth.

● An individual or group donating to the City of Portsmouth and/or the use of 
land or facilities for community purposes.

Honorary Street Name Designation Policy | July 26, 2022



Sign Description and Placement

● Located on top of existing street signs
● Double-faced
● Same size as the standard City of Portsmouth Street name sign
● White lettering on a brown background with a white border
● Only on local streets

Honorary Street Name Designation Policy | July 26, 2022



Application Process

● A completed application would be submitted to the Director of Planning, 
accompanied by a written justification, family/estate consent form (if 
applicable) and application fee (to be determined by City Council). 

● The written justification should show how the proposed designation is 
consistent with the criteria stated in the policy. When honoring a person or 
persons, the application will describe the contributions to the City. 

● Written documentation and approval by family/estate agent of individual to 
be honored (if available/possible) is required as part of the proposal.  

Honorary Street Name Designation Policy | July 26, 2022

Process continued on next slide



Application Process (continued)

● Application reviewed by Planning Department staff for adherence to criteria, 
then voted on by staff committee made up city staff appointed by the City 
Manager.

● Committee provides recommendation to City Council.
● City Council may approve, reject, or propose a different designation.
● City Council has sole authority to approve honorary street designation 

requests. The approval of the request shall be permanent, unless otherwise 
direct by the City Council. 

Honorary Street Name Designation Policy | July 26, 2022



Costs

● If approved by City Council, the requestor shall pay all costs associated with 
the design, fabrication, and installation of the signs. The cost to cover future 
maintenance costs that the City is expected to incur over the life of the 
honorary designation. 

● Signs will not be installed until all payments received.

Honorary Street Name Designation Policy | July 26, 2022



Next Steps

● Feedback from City Council
● Changes desired by City Council

Honorary Street Name Designation Policy | July 26, 2022



Questions?

Honorary Street Name Designation Policy | July 26, 2022


	01-13-2025 Agenda
	12-09-2024 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes
	Call to order
	Amendments to Agenda
	Consent Agenda
	Public Hearing
	Old/New Business
	City Manager’s Report
	Council/Staff Reports on Boards/Commissions

	2025 Meeting Schedule
	CMR_Resolution Honoring June Fleming
	A Resolution in Memory of June Fleming
	CMR_Resolution Honoring Robert Cutchins II
	A RESOLUTION HONORING ROBERT CUTCHINS
	CMR_Resolution Honoring Ray Smith
	A RESOLUTION HONORING RAY SMITH
	CMR_Camp Family Foundations Grant
	BA 2025-8 Revised 01.08.2025
	CMR_Franklin Southampton Charities Donation
	BA 2025-9 Revised 01.08.2025
	Agenda Statement-Appointment to VMEA and EVRIFA
	VIRGINIA MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION
	Second Restated and Amended By-Laws
	EVRIFA
	EVRIFA BYLAWS
	Agenda Statement_Renaming and Honorary Naming of Streets
	Attachment 4a_Draft Honorary Street Name Designation Policy
	Attachment 4a_Examples

